

UNFPA eTendering Manual for Bidders

December 22, 2015 Anu Saxena Peery, Lauren Knipping Bolinger



Table of Contents

Common Definitions:	3
1. UNFPA bids & the new eTendering system	5
1.1 Register as a Bidder User	5
2. Viewing available bid events	11
2.1 Accessing events	11
2.2 Accepting a bid invitation	13
2.3 Declining a bid invitation	14
2.4 Notifications	14
3. Submitting a bid	15
3.1 Responding to event questions (bid factors)	15
3.2. Enter bid line responses	17
3.3 Finalizing submission	19
3.4 Alternative Bids	20
3.4.1 Method 1: Submit an alternate bid directly	20
3.4.2 Method 2: Copy from previous bid	20
3.5 Submitting bids via XML files	21
4. Managing submitted bids	21
4.1 View/edit bids	21
4.2 Cancel bids	22
4.3 Event amendments and updating your bid	23
4.4. View Activity	24



Common Definitions:

Bid	A submission of an offer on an event.					
Bid Factor	Bid requirements and evaluation criteria, that may or may not be cost-related, which factors into the award of an event. Bid factors can be of pass or fail or can be assigned weightings and used to determine the best qualified bid.					
	Examples of bid factors include price, product warranties, service level agreements, and defect ratings, among many others.					
Bidder	Anyone registered to place a bid on an event. The term bidder applies whether it is a sell event (i.e. when UNFPA is selling goods) or a buy event (i.e. when UNFPA is the buyer).					
Business Unit	An identification code that represents a high-level organization of business information usually representing an UNFPA Country Office or HQ department.					
Buy Event	In a buy event, UNFPA wants to buy goods or services. In addition to price, the creator may specify other bid factors and assign weightings, which factors into the award decision. Bidders must submit their bids, including responses to the bid factors, by a specified End Date after which time the bids are evaluated and the event is awarded.					
	 In eTendering, there are three types of buy events: <u>Auction</u>: Also known as a reverse auction. All bids are visible to all bidders. Bidders can enter multiple bids, to beat the current highest-scoring bid. <u>Sealed RFx</u>: Similar to a RFx event, yet also restricts the event creator from viewing the bids until after the event has ended. It is used by UNFPA for Invitation to Bid (ITB) and request for Proposals (RFP) type of processes (as well as for some Request for Quotations (RFQs) and secondary bidding processes). 					
End Date	The date and time the event closes meaning that bids are no longer accepted.					
Event Creator	The originator of the event in the system.					
Factor Type	The type of information being requested on the bid factor, such as monetary, numeric, date, text, yes/no, or list.					
Preview Date	The time available before an event's start date. During preview, bidders may view the event, and may enter bid data into the system but will not be able to submit their bid.					



	Having a preview time for an event is optional.				
Public Event	An event on which any person or organization may bid.				
RFx	A request for information or request for quote event in which each bidder bids once; bidders cannot see each others' bids and scores.				
SetID	An identification code that represents a set of control table information or tablesets. A tableset is a group of tables (records) necessary to define your organization's structure and processing options.				
Start Date	The date and time at which the event becomes open for bidding.				
User ID	The system identifier for the individual who generates a transaction.				
Weighting	Both bid factors and line items may be assigned with weightings to reflect their level of importance. Weighting may be used to analyze and score bids.				



1. UNFPA bids & the new eTendering system

UNFPA bids are open to international competition and public procurement notices are posted on <u>United</u> <u>Nations Global Marketplace</u> (UNGM), per UNFPA Procurement Procedures.

UNFPA is now shifting to an eTendering system, which will be used to conduct, evaluate and award bids. While bids will be launched within the new online system, procurement opportunities are still open to all suppliers, regardless of whether they have done business with UNFPA in the past or not.

If you have not done business with UNFPA before, or have put forward offers on UNFPA bids in the past, but have not been set up as a vendor, you can bid on UNFPA tender events by registering as a Bidder User.

If you are already a UNFPA vendor, you should register as a Supplier User and instructions on this process are available in the eSupplier Connection manual.

1.1 Register as a Bidder User

<u>Please note that Internet Explorer is the best browser to use for this application. Also please make</u> <u>sure all cookies browser cache is deleted before clicking on the link.</u>

To start, log in to the Supplier portal with external generic user ID:

- Website: https://etendering.partneragencies.org
- User id: unfpa.guest
- Password: why2change



On next page you will see a login pagelet. Click on the Register as a Sourcing Bidder link.



ogin	0 -
ogin here as an existing User.	
User ID:	
Password:	
Sign In	
Sign in	
Register as a Sourcing Bidder	
Click here to register as a bidder and to be able	
8	
Register as a Supplier	
Register as a Supplier This is for UNFPA Suppliers only. Click here to exister as a supplier user. You must have a	
Register as a Supplier This is for UNFPA Suppliers only. Click here to egister as a supplier user. You must have a egistration code to continue	
Register as a Supplier This is for UNFPA Suppliers only. Click here to register as a supplier user. You must have a registration code to continue I forgot my password	

IMPORTANT NOTE: When you reach this screen, you may have the ability to view current bids prior to completing the registration process. It is <u>imperative</u> that you continue through the full registration process prior to viewing a bid, accepting an invitation to bid, or submitting a formal offer. If you submit a bid prior to completing the full registration process, your company name will not be known to the buyer, the offer will not be recorded correctly in the system, and it will be disqualified at the evaluation stage.

In Step 1 of the registration process, you will be asked to complete the Preliminary Information section. Under number 2, be sure to choose **Selling goods/services**, instead of the other two options.

Bidder Registration
Step 1 of 6: Preliminary information.
These questions will determine the type of bidder you will become.
* Required Field
1. Please select the type of bidder which best describes you.
● Business ○ Individual
2. What type of bidding activities are you interested in?
○ Buying goods/Services
Selling goods/Services
OBoth
Next >>



In Step 2, you will set up your user account. The preferred naming convention for usernames is first name separated by a period and then last name (firstname.lastname). If more than one person in your organization will be involved with the bids, you can create more than one user account by clicking on **Save and Add Another User**. If not, just click **Next** when you have completed filling in all fields.

Bidder Registration					
Step 2 of 6: User Account So	etup				
Create a user account for your company. Optic please click on the 'Save and Add Another use	onally, if you want to add another user to access this account r' button. You can repeat it to add as many users as needed.				
* Required Field					
*Company Name My Company Inc.					
URLID: http://					
User Information					
*First Name Elizabeth	Delete				
*Last Name Windsor					
Title					
*Email ID ewindsor@mycompany.com					
*Telephone 888-383-6818	Ext				
Fax]				
*User ID elizabeth.windsor	(User's account login name.)				
	Save and Add Another User				
<< Back Next >>	Cancel Registration				

In step 3, you will be prompted to enter your company's primary address. When you have completed filling in a fields, click **Next.**



Bidder Registration	
Step 3 of 6: Primary Address	8
Please provide a Primary Address for your con Primary Address would be the main headquart	npany. If your company has multiple site locations, the ers.
* Required Field	
Primary Address	
If your address is not located in the US Country' link and select the country be	A, Please click on the 'Change fore you enter the address.
Country: United States Chang	e Country
*Address 1: 16 Buckingham Road	
Address 2:	
Address 3:	
*City: New Windsor	
County:	
*State: NY	Postal: 12533
<< Back Next >>	Cancel Registration

In step 4, you will be asked to enter other account addresses. If your company's invoicing address is different than the physical address, you need to check the box next to **Invoice Address**, then click **Next**. The system will prompt you to add the additional address.

If your company has only one address, do not check any boxes and simply click Next.



Bidder Registration				
Step 4 of 6: Other Account Addresses				
* Required Field				
The Primary Address you have entered for My Company Inc. is:				
16 Buckingham Road				
New Windsor, New York 12533, United States				
If you need to make corrections, click the Back button and edit your fields.				
Other Account Addresses				
Because you will be bidding on events as a seller of goods/services, you must provide an Invoice address.				
Check boxes below to indicate addresses that are different from your Primary Address:				
Invoice Address your company's accounts receivable department (for when you sell goods/services).				
<< Back Next >> Cancel Registration				

In step 5 you will be asked to assign your company contact(s) to the addresses entered in the previous steps. Once assigned, click **Next**.

Bidder Registration Step 5 of 6: Address Contacts					
Please enter additional addresses as necessary. (This is required only if your Primary Address is not used for all address types.) Next, please designate each of your registered users to an appropriate address category. If you're not sure which address category is the best match, choose "Primary Address". * Required Field					
User Name Designate as Contact for					
Elizabeth Windsor	Primary Address				
<< Back Next >>	Cancel Registration				

Step 6 is the final step, in which all bidders must review and accept UNFPA's Terms and Conditions for use of this website.

*Please note that these terms and conditions should not be confused with the General Conditions of Contract that govern UNFPA bids and contracts. The terms and conditions agreed to here indicate that



the company registering as a bidder has read and agrees to accept the terms of use of the bidder's website.

Tick the checkbox to indicate your agreement, then click on **Finish**.



You will then be taken to the following screen, which confirms that your bidder registration was successful. Furthermore, within a few minutes you will receive an email from the system with a temporary password. This will allow you to log in and reset your password. Follow the link and the instructions in the email to finalize your user account.

Bidder Registration
Bidder registration for Test was successful. You will receive a confirmation email with your username and password. Please note there may be delay in granting the necessary access to you. Therefore, please close this browser completely and wait for 15 minutes and use the url provided in the email
OK



2. Viewing available bid events

Now that you are registered, each time you log in you will be able to see a list of bidding events issued by UNFPA. These will be listed in the **My Sell Events** section.

2.1 Accessing events

Click on the **Event Name** link for the intended eTendering event to see all details of the event. Please note that this pagelet only displays the first five events in the list, so to be sure you are able to see all open events, click on **See all my events**.

My Sell Events					
Event Name	Event Type	Start Date/Time	End Date/Time:	<u>Status</u>	
RFP No. UNFPA/DNK/1for Graphic Design Services	RFx	09/07/2015 5:29AM EDT	22/08/2015 05:29 AM EDT	Accepted	
ITB for Audit Services	RFx	16/07/2015 7:36AM EDT	29/08/2015 07:36 AM EDT	Accepted	
Sc Testing Event - Anu 2	RFx	23/07/2015 7:52AM EDT	19/09/2015 07:55 AM EDT		
Tendering testing for Suppliers 1	RFx	27/07/2015 3:26AM EDT	23/09/2015 03:26 AM EDT		
Tendering testing for Suppliers 2	RFx	27/07/2015 3:29AM EDT	23/09/2015 03:29 AM EDT		
See all of my events					

You will be taken into the event details page, where you can review the bid prior to determining whether or not you will place a bid, as well as to accept the invitation to bid and to enter your offer.

Event Detai	s					
Accept Invitation Bid on Event			Bidding	Shortcuts: <u>View You</u> <u>View Bid</u> <u>Upload X</u>	<u>r Bid Activity</u> ding Documents (ML Bid Respons] e
Event Name: Event ID: Event Format/Type Event Round: Event Version: Event Start Date:	UNFPA/CPH/ITB/15/566 UNFPA-000000566 Sell Event RFX 1 2 20/09/2015 10:024M EDT		My Bid S	tatus:		
Event End Date: Event Description INVITATION TO BII ITB No. UNFPA/CI MANUFACTURE A INTRODUCTORY	20/10/2015 10:02 AM EDT) H/ITB/15/566 ND/OR SUPPLY OF PRODUCTS A LETTER	ND RELATED SERVICES				• • •
Contact: Phone: Email:	Lauren Bolinger		Paymen My Bids: Edits to	t Terms: 0 Submitted Bids: All	owed	
Online Discussion Live Chat Help:			Multiple	Bids: No	t Allowed	
Display: All Lin	es 👻	★ Bid Required		Line Comments/F	iles	
	<u>Find</u> Vi	ew All 🖾 🚻 🛛 First 🚺	1-2 of 2	Last		
Line	Description		<u>Unit</u>	Requested Quantity	Status	
1 ★ 2 ★	Condoms; female 2. Additional cost of special pr (foil/blister/sachet), inner bo including charges on a stick	inting on individual pack x, and shipping cartons, ker on these packages	EA EA	1.0000		Ø
Return to Event Se	arch					



Key elements of the Event Details page are as follows:

Bidding Shortcuts: View Bidding Documents	Click here to view and download all solicitation documents associated with the bidding event: Event Header Comments and Attachments Event ID: 000000566 Enter Comments Please review the following documents carefully: Section I: Instructions to Bidders Section I: Technical Specifications and Schedule of Requirements Section I: UNFPA General Terms and Conditions Section V: Bid Ferms 1. Bid contirmation form 2. Bid submission form 3. Bidders identification form 4. Product Itern overview form					
	Image: Prest # 1-6 or 5 # Last Attached File Attachment Description 1 0_TTB_UNFPA-CPH-12-056.pdf TTB_UNFPA-CPH-12-056 Q 2 4_Product_Item_Overview_Form_xlsx Product_Item_Overview_Form Q 3 5_Countries_of_Registration_Form.xlsx Countries_of_Registration_Form Q 4 6_Price_Schedule_Form.doc Price_Schedule_Form Q 5 AccessRH_Supplier_Agreement_Sample.pdf AccessRH_Supplier_Agreemen Q OK Cancel Download solicitation documents by clicking on the magnifying glasses.					
Event Start Date	This shows the date/time by which suppliers can start bidding on an event. When planning for your bid submission, take careful note that the time zone is always shown in EDT/EST, regardless of the location of the UNFPA office leading the bid.					
Event End Date	This shows the latest date/time by which suppliers can submit a bid. When planning for your bid submission, take careful note that the time zone is always shown in EDT/EST, regardless of the location of the UNFPA office leading the bid. *It is important to note that some bids may have a preview period, in which suppliers can view the event, but during which bids cannot yet be submitted. ** It is also very important to complete your submission as far in advance of the deadline as possible. Once the deadline passes the system closes the bid and it will no longer be possible to submit an offer.					
Event Description	Gives an overview of the bid requirements.					
Email	The bid focal point's email address, to which suppliers can submit clarification questions. Click on the email link to submit your question.					
Edits to Submitted Bids	Indicates whether or not suppliers will still have the ability to update/edit their submitted bid prior to the end date.					



Multiple Bids	Indicates whether or not suppliers will be able to submit alternate bids. This will
	also be clearly addressed in the solicitation documents, which you will be able to
	download and review.

2.2 Accepting a bid invitation

If after reviewing the bid, you intend to submit an offer, click on **Accept Invitation**. It is very important to click on this button; if you have not accepted the invitation, you will not be notified via email on changes or clarifications that may be made to the bid event during the bidding period. Accepting an invitation does not bind bidders to eventually submit a bid.

You will then be taken back to the main page and will see the **View Events and Place Bids** search results. In the status column, you will see the **Status** column now shows as **Accepted**. Click on the link to return to the bid event.

View Events a	View Events and Place Bids						
Enter search criteria to locate an event for viewing or placing bids.							
Search Criteria							
Use Saved Search:							
			Poculto Shou	ld Includo:			
Event ID:	-			iu iliciuue.			
Event Name:			Purcha	se Event			
Event Type:			Reques	t For Information			
Event Status:	_						
Include Declined	Invitations?						
Search C	lear		Onus Oneste O	itaria Advanced Oceant O			
	Manage Saved S	searches	Save Search Ci	nteria Advanced Search C	nteria		
Search Results				l 🗖 🛛 First 🚺 1	6 of 6 🚺 Last		
Event ID	Event Name	Format	Туре	End Date	<u>Status</u>		
UNFPA-000000475	eSC Test Bid - Anu 1	Sell	RFx	19/09/2015 07:52 AM EDT			
UNFPA-000000476	eSc Testing Event - Anu 2	Sell	RFx	19/09/2015 07:55 AM EDT			
UNFPA-0000000481	eTendering testing for Suppliers 1	Sell	RFx	23/09/2015 03:26 AM EDT	-		
UNFP 00000482	eTendering testing for Suppliers 2	Sell	RFx	23/09/2015 03:29 AM EDT	-		
UNFP 000000483	eTendering testing for Suppliers 3	Sell	RFx	23/09/2015 03:33 AM EDT			
UNFPA-0000000566	UNFPA/CPH/ITB/15/566	Sell	RFx	20/10/2015 10:02 AM ED1	Accepted		



2.3 Declining a bid invitation

When you return to the event, you will see the option to **Decline Event**. You will prompted by the system to enter comments explaining the reason to decline the bid. Complete the form and click **Continue** to return to the main screen.

Event Details		
Decline Invitation Bid on Event	Bidding Shortcuts:	<u>View Your Bid Activity</u> <u>View Bidding Documents</u> <u>Upload XML Bid Response</u>

Decline Event Invitation
Event ID: 000000566 Name: UNFPA/CPH/ITB/15/566
Please select a reason for declining this event invitation:
\odot
Please enter any additional comments:
Continue Return to Event Search

If, after accepting the invitation, you choose to continue with submitting a bid, click **Bid on Event** to start your bid.

2.4 Notifications

It is important to note that the system does not send automatic notifications when an event is posted.

However, bidders who are invited directly through the system to participate in a bid event will receive an email notification containing all bid event attachments and a direct link to the bid event in the system.

Additionally, to ensure that bidding process are open to the public, UNFPA will continue to publish procurement notices on UNGM, and other media as relevant making reference to the eTendering system.



3. Submitting a bid

Once you click on **Bid on Event**, you will be taken to the main page of the bid. You will see the main event summary information and the line items that you were able to see prior to starting your bid.

3.1 Responding to event questions (bid factors)

In addition, you will also see a list of bid factors listed under **Event Questions**. (For a definition of bid factors, please refer to the <u>Common Definitions</u> section of this document).

If a weighting has been applied to the bid factors, this will be shown next to the question (in the screenshot below, no weightings have been applied).

ent Questions		
★Bid Required	🛷 Ideal Response Require	ed
	Previ	ous Questions 1-20 of 20 Next Questions
To establish thei	r eligibility, bidders shall complete and	I provide the following documents.
🏕 🖗 Have you	completed, signed and uploaded the	Bid Submission Form, Section V., Form 2?
Response:	•	Weighting
ldeal:	Yes	Add Comments or Attachments
🖈 ኞ Have con	npleted, signed, and uploaded the Bid	ders Identification Form?
Response:	•	Weighting
ldeal:	Yes	Add Comments or Attachments
fo establish its o	qualifications, the bidder shall submit t	to UNFPA's satisfaction the following documents.
ጵ ኞ Has the t vhere it resides;	pidder provided evidence that the bidde ; e.g. through provision of certification (er is established as a company and legally incorporated in the country of incorporation or other documentary evidence?
Response:	•	Weighting
ldeal:	Yes	Add Comments or Attachments
ጵ 🔅 Have you egistration in the	provided a copy of valid manufacturing e country of operation?	g license from the country of manufacturing and/or a copy of company
Response:	•	Weighting
ldeal:	Yes	Add Comments or Attachments
1 ct		

Review each question and either select your response from the dropdown menu, or enter your response in the indicated field. The way you will be required to respond will depend on the question and how the bid factor is set up.



You may see one, both, or none of the following two icons next to the bid factors:

★Bid Required 🧳	Ideal Response Required
Bid Required	This means that a response to the bid factor/question is required. The system will not allow you to submit an offer until the response has been completed.
Ideal Response Required	This means that the buyer has set a required response for the bid factor. If you do not select the required response, the system will not allow you to submit an offer. This is most commonly used when the buyer has used yes/no bid factors.

In many cases, the bid factor will request you to upload documentation to support your response. Click on **Add Comments or Attachments**.

Question Comments and Attachments							
Business Unit: UNFPA Event II	000000566						
Have you completed, signed and up	bloaded the Bid Submission Form	n, Section V., Form 2?					
Attachments							
Add New Attachments			🗖 🛛 First 🚺 1 of 1 🚺				
Attached File	Attachment Description	Upload View					
		Upload View A	dd New Attachments Delete				
Comments							
Add New Comments							
OK Canad							
OK Cancel							

Click on **Upload** to add one document at time. To add additional documents, click on **Add New Attachments**. To remove an unwanted attachment, click on **Delete**.

In the **Add New Comments box**, you can also enter any additional comments related to the attached documentation or the bid factor itself that you want to bring to UNFPA's attention.

Click OK.



Repeat this process for all bid factors, as required and where applicable.

3.2. Enter bid line responses

When all bid factor responses are complete, scroll down to the next section: **Step 2: Enter Bid Line Responses**. The key details of this section are summarized in the table below.

Step	Step 2: Enter Line Bid Responses									
Th for	This event contains one or more individual lines that await your bid response. Some or all lines may require your bid in order for consideration by the Event Administrator.									
Lin	es i	n Thi	s Event: 2							
Lin	es T	'hat l	Require a Response: 2							
Υοι	ır To	tal L	ine Pricing: 0.0000 USD							
			-1-11							
HIC		ne D	etall							
★	Bid	Requ	ired 🕞 Line Comments/Files							
					Previous Lines 1-2	of 2 Next Lines				
Lin	e		Description	Unit	Requested Quantity	Your Bid Quantity	Your Unit Bid Price	Your Total Bid Price		
	1 🛧 Condoms; female 2. EA 1.0000 1.0000 0.0000 USD Bid 👂					P				
	2	*	Additional cost of special printing on individual pack (foil/blister/sachet), inner box, and shipping cartons, including charges on a sticker on these packages	EA	1.0000	1.0000		0.0000 USD	<u>Bid</u>	ø

Lines in This Event	Summarizes the number of lines included in the event.		
Lines That Require a Response	Summarizes the number of lines for which a response is required.		
★ Bid Required	This means that a bid response is required. This system will not allow you to submit an offer until the response has been completed.		
) Line Comments/Files	This indicates that there are comments included/files attached to the price line for the supplier's attention. To access these comments/files, click on the bubble icon on the right.		

There are two ways to enter pricing information.

OPTION 1:

The simplest way is to do so directly in the **Your Unit Bid Price** box. Once the unit price is entered, the system will calculate both the total per line and the grand total of all lines.



In many cases, the quantity will be fixed and cannot be changed. Depending on how the bid has been set up, bidders may also have the possibility to update or input a new quantity. In cases where bidders are allowed to quote a quantity other than what has been requested in the bid, this will be clearly communicated in the solicitation documents.

★Bid Required ©Line Comments/Files									
			<u>a</u> 1	Previous Lines 1-2	of 2 Next Lines				
Line		Description	Unit	Requested Quantity	Your Bid Quantity	Your Unit Bid Price	Your Total Bid Price		
1	\star	Condoms; female 2.	EA	1.0000	1.0000		0.0000 USD 🚽	<u>Bid</u>	(\mathbb{P})
2	*	Additional cost of special printing on individual pack (foil/blister/sachet), inner box, and shipping cartons, including charges on a sticker on these packages	EA	1.0000	1.0000		0.0000 USD	Bid	ø

It is important to check for documents and comments attached to/included on the price line. In order to view this, click on the white bubble at the end of the line. As well as being able to download attachments/view comments provided by UNFPA, you will also be able to upload your own attachments/add additional comments, following the same instruction as above (section 3.1).

OPTION 2:

The preferred way to enter your unit price, however, is to click on the **Bid** link (starred above) and to enter pricing information in the **Your Unit Bid Price** box from the line details page.

Line: 1 Response Re	quired: Yes		
Condoms; female 2.			
Category: Female Con View/Add Question Comme	doms nts and Attachments		
Exact request quantity requ	lired.		
Unit of Measure:	Each	Your Unit Bid Price:	
Qty Requested:	1.0000	Total Bid Price:	0.0000 USD
Your Max Bid Quantity:	1.0000	Reserve Price:	No
Max Quantity:	1.0000	Weighting:	100.00000
Line Questions	Previous Questions 1-	7 of 7 Next Questions	
★ ♀ Please provide: 1) each of these quantity ran	The quantity ranges at which volume disco ges. Please download the excel file attach	ounts apply to your standard unit price. 2 ad to the line item and upload to the sar	2) The unit price for me line item.
Response		Ado a	<u>i Comments</u>
★ Please indicate minim	um order quantity (MOQ) per Primary UoM		



This is the preferred method, because in some cases there may be further bid factors associated with price lines that require response.

Following the same instructions listed earlier, enter your bid factor responses. You have the ability to add specific comments to your bid factor response by clicking on the **Add Comments** link.

You also have the possibility to view any line documents uploaded or line comments added by UNFPA, by clicking on **View/Add Question Comments and Attachments**, as well as upload your own documents or add further comments.

3.3 Finalizing submission

When all responses have been entered and all supporting documentation uploaded, click **Validate Entries** at the bottom of the page. If everything has been entered correctly, you should receive the 'No errors found' message. Click **OK**.



Note that you can also **Save for Later** if you need more time to complete the bid. However, it is important to note that if you **Save for Later** your bid is not submitted. A bid is submitted only when you click on **Submit bid**.



When you have finalized your offer, click on **Submit Bid** to complete the bidding process.

Congratulations! You have successfully submitted a bid via the UNFPA eSupplier Connection Portal. You will see the below bid confirmation message in your browser. You will also receive a confirmation email with a copy of the bid submitted.

Bid Confirmation									
Your bid has been succes	ssfully submitted.								
Bid ID:	1		Bid Date:	11/08/201	15 2:32:28AM ED	T			
Event ID:	000000476	eSc Testing	g Event - Anu 2						
Event Format:	Sell Event		Round:	1	Version:	1			
Start Date:	23/07/2015 7:52AM E	DT	End Date:	19/09/201	15 07:55 AM EDT				
Your Total Price:	1.00 USD								
OK Copy Bid									



To return to the list of bidding events, click on OK.

3.4 Alternative Bids

There are some cases where UNFPA will accept alternate bids. This information will be clearly communicated in the solicitation documents included in the event. In these cases, bidders will be allowed to submit more than one bid in the system, with one of them being the primary bid and the other/s being alternate bids. There are different methods of how to submit an alternate bid as described below:

3.4.1 Method 1: Submit an alternate bid directly

In this method you can submit a bid directly entering all the required information such as: responses to bid questions; prices, attachments, etc., from scratch. To do so, simply click on **Bid on Event**.

Event Details			
Bid on Event	1	Bidding Shortcuts:	View, Edit or Copy from Saved Bids
	_		View Your Bid Activity
			View Bidding Documents
			Upload XML Bid Response
Event Name:	UNFPA/CPH/ITB/15/566		
Event ID:	UNFPA-000000566	My Bid Status:	
Event Format/Type:	Sell Event RFx		
Event Round:	1		

3.4.2 Method 2: Copy from previous bid

This method allows you to use the information submitted in your previous/original submitted bid and then make only necessary changes. To do so, click on **View, Edit, or Copy from Saved bids** and then click on the **Copy**. The system will prompt the bid already completed with same information as the original bid and you can then make necessary changes.

View, Edit or copy from Saved Bids								
	Welcome, Shineheart Wig Company							
Event Name:	UNFPA	CPH/ITB/15/566						
Event ID	UNFPA-	000000566		Event Round:	1			
Event Format/Type:	Sell Eve	nt RFx		Event Version:	5			
Event Start Date:	13/09/20	15 10:02AM EDT		Multiple Bids	Allowed			
Event End Date:	20/10/20	15 10:02 AM EDT		Currency	US Dolla	ar		
						_		_
						L	First 🚺 1 o	of 1 🖻 Last
Bid ID Round	Version	Bid Status	Event Status	Bid Last Saved				
1 1 5	5	Posted	Posted	14/09/2015 6:10AM EDT	View/Edit	Сору	Cancel U	pload



Important note: Make sure that the bid you are trying to copy from corresponds to the latest version of the bid event, otherwise you will receive a system error and will not be able to use that bid.

In cases when alternate bids are allowed, bidders must clearly identify which is the alternate bid and also cancel any bid that is not valid. How to cancel a bid is explained further below.

3.5 Submitting bids via XML files

You can prepare your response off-line outside the system and then upload it in the system when ready, using an XML file.

To do this first you need to download the XML version of the bid event by going to **View Event Package** and then downloading event bid Package in XML format. Once the page is downloaded, you must save it on your hard drive.

From there, open Excel and open the saved XML file from its hard drive location. You must open the XML file via the **Open File** menu in Excel and not by clicking on the XML file itself in the folder.

Important note: You can upload your bid using the XML feature only once. Once a bid has been posted, the XML file cannot override the bid information in the system. The only exception is when alternative bids are allowed. In this case, uploading your bid using XML file will create a new bid in the system.

You can provide your responses in the excel table. Once responses have been provided you can save the files as an XML excel file and upload your responses in the system. Worksheet **General Details** is used to respond to the general bid factors and the worksheet **Line details** is used for completing the responses for each line item.

To upload the XML file into the system go to the start page of the Bid event and click on "Upload XML Bid Response."

Important note: Documents cannot be attached through XML files. They must be uploaded in the system directly.

4. Managing submitted bids

This section contains instructions on how to view, edit, or cancel a bid that has been already submitted.

4.1 View/edit bids

To view your bid prior to the event end date, click on **View Events and Place Bids** and select the corresponding Bid Event.



Then, click on View, Edit or Copy from Saved Bids from the main bid screen.

From the available options, click on **View/Edit**. This will allow you to verify the information you submitted.

View	View, Edit or copy from Saved Bids									
					Welcome, Shir	neheart Wig	Company	1		
Event Na	ame:	UNFPA	/CPH/ITB/15/56	6						
Event ID)	UNFPA	-0000000566		Event Round:	1				
Event Fo	ormat/Type:	Sell Eve	ent RFx		Event Version:	5				
Event St	tart Date:	13/09/2	015 10:02AM EC	от	Multiple Bids	Allowe	d			
Event Er	nd Date:	20/10/20)15 10:02 AM EE	т	Currency	US Dollar				
			ļ		,		I	🛛 🛛 First 🗹	1 of 1 🗳 Last	
Bid ID	Round	<u>Version</u>	Bid Status	Event Status	Bid Last Saved					
1	1	5	Posted	Posted	14/09/2015 6:10AM EDT	View/Edit	<u>Copy</u>	Cancel	Upload	

While viewing the bid, you will also have the option to edit your bid up until the deadline. This will open the bid submitted and you can overwrite to make the necessary changes and submit again. <u>Important</u> <u>note</u>: To submit an amended bid, bidder must click on "Submit bid". Otherwise, bid will not be posted in the system and will be considered as "not submitted."

4.2 Cancel bids

If necessary, click on **Cancel** beside the bid you want to cancel.

View, Edit or copy from Saved Bids									
					Welcome, Shi	neheart Wig (Company		
Event N	ame:	UNFPA	/CPH/ITB/15/566						
Event ID)	UNFPA	-0000000566		Event Round:	1			
Event Fo	ormat/Type:	Sell Eve	ent RFx		Event Version:	5			
Event S	tart Date:	13/09/2	015 10:02AM EDT		Multiple Bids	Allowed	b		
Event E	nd Date:	20/10/20	015 10:02 AM EDT		Currency	US Dol	lar		
							_		
				-			<u> </u> 2	First	1 of 1 🕨 Last
Bid ID	Round	Version	Bid Status	Event Status	Bid Last Saved				
1	1	5	Posted	Posted	14/09/2015 6:10AM EDT	View/Edit	Copy	Cancel	Upload

You will be taken to the following screen, where you must click on Cancel This Bid.



Cancel Bid							
Business Unit:	UNFPA	Event Round:	1				
vent ID:	000000566	Event Version:	5				
vent Name:	UNFPA/CPH/ITB/15/566	Event Format:	Buy				
Bid ID:	1						
Bid Status:	Posted						
ast Saved:	14/09/2015 6:10AM EDT						

Status will change to **Cancelled** as shown below and at the same time you will receive an email confirmation noting the cancellation.

View, Edit or copy from Saved Bids									
				We	lcome, Shineh	eart Wig Comp	any		
Event Name:	UNFPA/CPH/II	B/15/566							
Event ID	UNFPA-00000	00566		Event F	Round:	1			
Event Format/Type:	Sell Event	RFx		Event Version:		5			
Event Start Date:	13/09/2015 10	02AM EDT		Multiple Bids		Allowed			
Event End Date:	20/10/2015 10:	02 AM EDT		Curren	су	US Dollar			
								First 💶 1	of 1 💵 Last
Bid ID Round	Version	Bid Status	Event Sta	<u>itus</u>	Bid Last Saved				
1 1	5	Cancelled	Posted		14/09/2015 7:	01AM EDT		<u>View</u>	Сору

4.3 Event amendments and updating your bid

If UNFPA amends the bid event and its requirements, an automatic email notification will be sent by the system to all bidders who have either accepted the bid invitation, have been invited directly by UNFPA, or who have already submitted a bid on the original version of the Bid Event.

The sections of the event that have been amended will be clearly communicated by the bid focal point.

How the bidder can modify his bid accordingly depends on what changes have been made in the bid event. In any case, there are two main categories of changes:

1) No changes made to line items or bid factors



If no changes have been made to the bid factors or line items, bidders can follow the same steps for editing their bids by clicking on the **View/Edit** link and overwriting previously entered information. The bidder can also submit a new bid, in the same way as when submitting an alternate bid and cancelling the previous bid.

2) Changes made in line items or bid factors

If the amendment of the bid event includes changes in bid factors or line items, the bidder can neither edit a previous bid, nor copy it and create a new bid. If bidders click on the **View/Edit** or **Copy** links corresponding to the previous bid for the original version of the bid event, a system error will appear.

Rather, bidders must submit a new bid by clicking on **Submit Bid** link in the main page and cancel their previous bid (following the same instructions above for bid cancellation).

4.4. View Activity

The system records bidder activity. To view your bid activity, click on **My Event Activity**. You can click on the linked numbers at the top of the page to see summaries of events to which you have been invited, against which you have bid, or for which you have been awarded.

You can also use the various search filters to search for specific activity.

To view the complete information of a specific bid, click on the **Event Id** link.

Shineheart Wig Co	ompany				
Event Activity Summary					
Click on number to view event Events Invited To: 13	ts below Events Bid On:	21	Events Award	led: <u>9</u>	
 Search Criteria 					
Event Format:	 Events Invi 	ited To 🛛 🔘 E	vents Bid On 🛛 💿 Event	s Awarded	
Event Type:	▼ Date Range:	From:	🗑 Through:	31	
Search					
▶ Legend					
Events				Find First 🗹 1-1	3 of 13 🚺 Last
Event ID Form ▷ UNFPA-000000435 Sell	Award to o bidder	Event Status Awarded	Start Date 04/06/2015 2:15AM EDT	End Date 04/06/2015 2:15AM EDT	Status
▷ <u>UNFPA-000000473</u> Sell	Re-test 3 FC2 bid	Awarded	22/07/2015 5:11AM EDT	23/07/2015 5:32AM EDT	
▷ <u>UNFPA-000000422</u> Sell	STAFF AUGMENTATION SERVICES INTERNAL AUDIT OF THE	Awarded	29/05/2015 4:37AM EDT	01/06/2015 8:34AM EDT	
UNFPA-0000000454 Sell	RFP No. UNFPA/DNK/1for Graphic Design Services	Pend Award	09/07/2015 5:29AM EDT	22/08/2015 5:29AM EDT	

From there it is possible to view/edit/copy/cancel bids as described above.